
 Page 1 
 

AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

May 2, 2024 | 6:30 PM 
Council Chambers 

City Hall | 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 
 
Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Lucas City Council will be held on Thursday, May 2, 2024, beginning at 
6:30 pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651, at which time the following agenda 
will be discussed. As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene 
into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney on any item 
on the agenda at any time during the meeting. Pursuant to Texas Government Code 551.127, one or more members 
of the governing body may appear via videoconference call. The presiding officer and a quorum of the City Council 
will be physically present at this meeting. 
 
If you would like to watch the meeting live, you may go to the City’s live streaming link at 
https://www.lucastexas.us/departments/public-meetings/. 
 
How to Provide Input at a Meeting:  
 
Speak In Person: Request to Speak forms will be available at the meeting. Please fill out the form 
and give to City Secretary Toshia Kimball prior to the start of the meeting. This form will also 
allow a place for comments.  
 
Submit Written Comments: If you are unable to attend a meeting and would like to submit 
written comments regarding a specific agenda item, email City Secretary Toshia Kimball at 
tkimball@lucastexas.us by no later than 3:30 pm the day of the meeting. The email must contain 
the person’s name, address, phone number, and the agenda item(s) for which comments will be 
made. Any requests received after 3:30 pm will not be included at the meeting. 
 
Call to Order  
 
• Roll Call 
• Determination of Quorum 
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
• Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Citizen Input 
The Citizen Input portion of the agenda is an opportunity for the public to address the City Council on any subject.  By completing 
a “Request to Speak” form and submitting to the City Secretary, citizens have an opportunity to speak at the City Council meeting.  
However, in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City council cannot discuss issues raised or make any decisions, 
but may refer items to City Staff for research and possible inclusion on a future agenda.  
 
1. Citizen Input. 
 
Community Interest 
Pursuant to Section 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items: 1) 
expression of thanks, congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of 
individuals; 4) reminders about upcoming City Council events; 5) information about community events; and 6) 
announcements involving imminent threat to public health and safety. 
 
 
 

https://www.lucastexas.us/departments/public-meetings/
mailto:tkimball@lucastexas.us


 Page 2 
 

2. Items of Community Interest. 
 

A. Keep Lucas Beautiful Gold Star Certificate 
 
Consent Agenda 
All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommended to the City Council for a single 
vote approval. If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for a separate vote. 
 
3.  Consent Agenda: 
 

A. Approval of minutes of the April 18, 2024, City Council meeting. 
 
Regular Agenda 
 
4. Consider adopting Ordinance #2024-05-01003 amending the City of Lucas Code of 

Ordinances, Appendix C Fee Schedule, Article 20 Water and Installation rates Section 
20.800 Administrative remedies for violations. (Presenter: Development Services Director Joe 
Hilbourn) 

 
5. Consider approving the request submitted by Aziz Aghayev on behalf of Forest Grove 

Lucas, LLC for a minor plat creating two lots being 2.34 acres of a called 7.33-acre tract 
of land located in the John W. Kerby Survey, Abstract Number 506, Tract 13, otherwise 
known as 950 West Forest Grove Road, Lucas, Texas. (Presenter: Development Services 
Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 
6. Consider adopting Ordinance #2024-04-01000 Chapter 12 titled, Traffic and Vehicles, by 

amending article 12.05 titled, Stopping, Standing and Parking, and Section 12.05.001 
titled, Prohibited in Specific Places, by designating Welborn Lane as a no parking area 
from the southern lot line of 2500 Welborn Lane to the north end of Welborn Lane. 
(Presenter: CIP Manager Patrick Hubbard) 

 
7. Consider adopting Ordinance #2024-05-01002 amending the City of Lucas Code of 

Ordinances, Chapter 12 Traffic and Vehicles, Article 12.03 Speed Limits, Section 
12.03.002 Specific Speed Limits to reduce the speed limit on East Lucas Road (FM 3286) 
from 60 MPH to 55 MPH from Winningkoff Road to the Lucas city limits (at the bridge 
just east of Snider Lane). (Presenter: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 
Executive Session 
 
8. Executive Session:  
 

 A. The City Council will convene into executive session pursuant to Section 551.074 of  
            the Texas Government Code, Personnel Matters, to deliberate the appointment,  
            employment, duties of a public officer - City Manager. 

 
9. Reconvene from Executive Session and take any action necessary as a result of the 

Executive Session. 
 
10. Adjournment. 
 
 
 



 Page 3 
 

 
 
 
Certification 
I do hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin 
board at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002 and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us 
on or before 5:00 p.m. on April 26, 2024. 

___________________________________________ 
Toshia Kimball, City Secretary 

 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable accommodations for persons 
attending public meetings at City Hall. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services should be directed to City Secretary 
Toshia Kimball at 972.912.1211 or by email at tkimball@lucastexas.us at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

http://www.lucastexas.us/


Item No. 01 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

May 2, 2024 
 
 

 

 
Requester: Mayor Jim Olk  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Citizen Input. 
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
  
NA 
 
Motion  
 
NA 



Item No. 02 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

May 2, 2024 
 

 
Requester: Mayor Jim Olk  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Items of Community Interest. 
 
Background Information  
 
Keep Texas Beautiful honors those going above and beyond to keep their communities clean and 
beautiful. Affiliates that reach Gold Star status have demonstrated organizational aptitude and have 
robust community support.  To achieve Gold Star status, affiliates share their mission and goals, 
answer questions about their economic development and diversity and inclusion practices or 
participate in the Beautify Texas Awards or Governor’s Community Achievement Awards 
programs.  They also provide a letter of support from their community. The City of Lucas has 
received the Keep Texas Beautiful Gold Star Certificate three years in a row.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1.  Keep Lucas Beautiful Gold Star Certificate 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
NA 
 
 





Item No. 03 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

May 2, 2024 
 
 

 

 
Requester: City Secretary Toshia Kimball 
   
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consent Agenda:  
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the April 18, 2024, City Council meeting. 
 

Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Minutes of the April 18, 2024, City Council meeting 

 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
  
Staff recommends approval of the consent agenda as presented. 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve the consent agenda as presented. 



1 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  
  A p r i l  1 8 ,  2 0 2 4  
 

MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

April 18, 2024 | 6:30 PM 
Council Chambers 

City Hall | 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 
 

 
City Councilmembers Present: 
Mayor Jim Olk 
Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele 
Councilmember David Keer 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher 
Councilmember Tim Johnson 
Councilmember Dusty Kuykendall 
Councilmember Phil Lawrence 
 

City Staff Present: 
City Manager Joni Clarke 
Assistant City Manager Kent Souriyasak 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
Fire Chief Ted Stephens 
Finance Director Liz Exum 
CIP Manager Patrick Hubbard 
City Secretary Toshia Kimball 
Deputy Daniel Gillespie 
 

The regular City Council meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm.  
 
Citizen Input 
 
1. Citizen Input 

 
Debbie, Greg and Kyle Jacobs, 1415 Ford Lane, sent an email expressing appreciation and gratitude for 
Mayor Olk and City Manager Joni Clarke for their service at the city.  
 
Community Interest            
 
2. Items of Community Interest. 
 
Mayor Olk read proclamation proclaiming May 2024 as National Cities, Town, and Villages Month in 
celebration of America’s local governments and the National League of Cities’ historic centennial 
anniversary in the City of Lucas.  
  
Mayor Olk gave items of community interest including:  
 

• Art in Public Places Reception 
• Lucas Farmers Market 
• Reporting Violations of Water Schedule in GovQA 
• Lucas Car Show 
• 2024 General and Special Election 

 
Consent Agenda 
 
3.  Consent Agenda: 
 

A. Approval of minutes of the April 3, 2024 Special City Council meeting. 
B. Approval of minutes of the April 4, 2024 City Council meeting.  
C. Consider adopting Ordinance #2024-04-01000 approving amendments to the City of 

Lucas Code of Ordinances Chapter 12 titled “Traffic and Vehicles” by designating 
Welborn Lane as a no parking area.   
 
 



2 | P a g e C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g
A p r i l  1 8 ,  2 0 2 4

Councilmember Fisher requested to pull agenda item B and Mayor Olk requested to pull agenda item 
C to consider separately.  

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Kuykendall, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Peele 
to approve Agenda item A. The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote. 

Councilmember Fisher requested to correct page 3 of the April 4, 2024 City Council meeting minutes on 
item #3B to state the motion was passed by a 6 to 1 vote. Councilmember Fisher opposed.

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Fisher, seconded by Councilmember Lawrence 
to approve Agenda item B with correction. The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 
vote.  

 Mayor Olk requested to pull Agenda item C from the agenda due to requests to speak and citizen 
comment email submissions related to designating Welborn Lane as a no parking area.  

Chrissy Vorderbruggen, 2000 Welborn Lane and 2020 Welborn Lane, was in opposition.   

Diel Rojas, 2120 Welborn Lane, was in opposition.  

Mayor Olk read emails from the following citizen input who were in opposition or in favor: 

Roger Casey, 1215 East Winningkoff Road, was in opposition.  

Chanthan Phan, 2100 Welborn Lane, was in opposition.  

Amber and Omar Jenkins, 2350 Welborn Lane, were in opposition. 

David Huerta, 2500 Welborn Lane, was in favor.  

Eileen Amoni and Josh Hammerquist, 2600 Welborn Lane, were in favor.  

The City Council decided to table the item and have staff bring it back with a map showing which 
residences were in opposition or in favor of the request, determine where the no parking location should 
be located on the map, and adjust the ordinance as necessary.  

Public Hearing 

4. Conduct a public hearing to consider adopting Ordinance #2024-04-00999 approving the
City of Lucas 2024 Water Conservation Plan and Water Resource Emergency Management
Plan.

CIP Manager Patrick Hubbard provided an overview of the 2024 Water Conservation Plan and Water 
Resource Emergency Management Plan.  

Councilmember Fisher asked how we are communicating the administrative fee with the residents and 
suggested that we add another tier.  City Manager Joni Clarke indicated that we communicate through  
our newsletter, sending out a lot of information on water conservation and it’s available online, and 
clarified that the first offense is a letter.  

Mayor Olk opened the public hearing at 7:16 p.m. 

There were no members of the public wishing to speak. 

Mayor Olk closed the public hearing at 7:16 p.m. 



3 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  
  A p r i l  1 8 ,  2 0 2 4  
 

 
City Manager Joni Clarke suggested that the City Council have a water workshop, and that she would  
put together a draft of topics. The City Council agreed.  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Johnson, seconded Mayor Pro Tem Peele to 

approve the adoption of Ordinance #2024-04-00999 approving the City of Lucas 2024 
Water Conservation Plan and Water Resource Emergency Management Plan. The motion 
passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
Regular Agenda  
 
5.   Consider adopting Ordinance 2024-04-01001 approving mid-year budget adjustments for 

fiscal year beginning October 1, 2023, and ending September 30, 2024. 
 
Finance Director Liz Exum presented the mid-year budget adjustment items. 
 
The City Council made no additional changes to the mid-budget adjustment.  

 
MOTION: A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, seconded by Councilmember Lawrence to 

adopt Ordinance #2024-04-01001 approving mid-year budget adjustments for fiscal year 
beginning October 1, 2023 and ending September 30, 2024.The motion passed 
unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
Executive Session 
 
6. Executive Session:  
 

The City Council will convene into Executive Session pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas 
Government Code, Personnel Matters to deliberate to interview City Manager candidates.  
 

City Council convened into Executive Session at 7:34 pm. 
 
7. Reconvene from Executive Session and take any action necessary as a result of the 

Executive Session. 
 
City Council reconvened from Executive Session at 10:10 pm.  
 
No action necessary for this item.  
 
8. Adjournment. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Johnson, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, to 

adjourn the meeting at 10:10 pm. The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  
 
 

 
APPROVED:      ATTEST: 
 
 
             
Mayor Jim Olk       Toshia Kimball, City Secretary 
 
 
 



Item No. 04 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

May 2, 2024 
 
 

 

 
Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider adopting Ordinance #2024-05-01003 amending the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, 
Appendix C Fee Schedule, Article 20 Water and Installation rates Section 20.800 Administrative 
remedies for violations.  
  
Background Information  
 
At the City Council meeting on April 18, 2024, the City Council adopted Ordinance #2024-04-
0999 approving the City of Lucas 2024 Water Conservation Plan and Water Resource Emergency 
Management Plan.  
 
The City will now need to amend the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, Appendix C Fee Schedule, 
Section 20.800 Administrative remedies for violations to reflect the revisions contained in the 
approved plan as follows: 
 

First offense: Certified letter notifying of violation.  
Second offense: $500.00  
Third and subsequent offenses: $2,000.00 

 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 

1. Ordinance #2024-05-01003 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
  
Staff recommends adopting the proposed ordinance #2024-05-01003.  
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny adopting Ordinance #2024-05-01003 amending the City of Lucas 
Code of Ordinances, Appendix C Fee Schedule, Article 20 Water and Installation rates Section 
20.800 Administrative remedies for violations. 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2024-05-01003 
Approved: May 2, 2024  - 1 - 
   

ORDINANCE # 2024-05-01003 
[AMENDING CODE OF ORDINANCE APPENDIX C, ARTICLE 20, SECTION 20.800] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING APPENDIX C “FEE 
SCHEDULE,” ARTICLE 20 “WATER AND INSTALLATION RATES,” 
SECTION 20.800 “ADMINISTRATIVE REMEDIES FOR VIOLATIONS”; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A REPEALING 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, The Lucas City Council approved updates to the City of Lucas 2024 Water 
and Water Resource Emergency Management Plan on or about April 18, 2024, and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the approved updates included changes to the administrative remedies for 
violation of certain stages of drought conditions. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LUCAS, TEXAS: 

 
Section 1. That the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lucas, Texas be, and the same is, hereby 
amended by amending Appendix C, “Fee Schedule,” Article 20, “Water and Installation Rates,” 
Section 20.800 “Administrative Remedies for Violations” to read as follows: 

 
“APPENDIX C 

 
FEE SCHEDULE 

 
. . .  

ARTICLE 20  WATER INSTALLATION RATES 
 
. . .  
 
AMEND: 
 
Sec. 20.800  Administrative remedies for violations. 
 

(a) First offense: $200.00 Certified letter notifying of violation. 
(b) Second offense: $400.00 500.00. 
(c) Third and subsequent offense: $600.00 2,000.00. 
(d) Fourth and subsequent offenses: $2,000.00. 

 
Section 2. All ordinances of the City of Lucas in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance 
shall be, and same are hereby, repealed, provided, however, that all other provisions of said 
Ordinances that are not in conflict herewith shall remain in full force and effect. 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2024-05-01003 
Approved: May 2, 2024  - 2 - 
   

Section 3. Should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or section of this 
Ordinance or of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, be adjudged or held to 
be voided or unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of 
said Ordinances or the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, which shall remain 
in full force and effect. 
 
Section 4. An offense committed before the effective date of the Ordinance is governed by 
prior law and the provisions of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances in effect when the offense 
was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose. 
 
Section 5. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Lucas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, 
COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS ________ DAY OF ______________ 2024. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Jim Olk, Mayor  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ __________________________________________ 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney  Toshia Kimball, City Secretary 
(cgm/4/23/24/4867-2353-9896, v. 2) 



Item No. 05 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

May 2, 2024 
 
 

 

 
Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider approving the request submitted by Aziz Aghayev on behalf of Forest Grove Lucas, LLC 
for a minor plat creating two lots being 2.34 acres of a called 7.33-acre tract of land located in the 
John W. Kerby Survey, Abstract Number 506, Tract 13, otherwise known as 950 West Forest 
Grove Road, Lucas, Texas. 
 
Background Information  
 
The request for the minor plat is to create two lots from an existing tract of land. The lots are 
currently zoned R-1 (Single-family residential 1-acre lots). The plat creates two lots slightly larger 
than the required minimum of one acre. The lots use the existing frontage on West Forest Grove 
Road and there is a right-of-way dedication. The project uses the existing water main and the 
drainage calculations are shown on the minor plat. 
 
On March 14, 2024, the Planning and Zoning Commission postponed this request to allow the 
developer to address concerns and make changes to the minor plat which includes: 
 

• Increasing the easement on the west side of Lot 1 to 24 feet instead of 20 feet to comply 
with Section 10.03.123(b) in the City’s Code of Ordinances regarding private roads. 

• Platting the remainder of Tract 13 to show the remainder of the 7.333-acre tract. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission approved the minor plat with these changes at their meeting 
on April 11, 2024. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 

1. Caspian Estates Location Map 
2. Caspian Estates Minor Plat 
3. Caspian Estates Minor Plat Application and Checklist 
 
 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
  



Item No. 05 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

May 2, 2024 
 
 

 

 
The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approving the minor plat as presented. 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny the request submitted by Aziz Aghayev on behalf of Forest Grove 
Lucas, LLC for a minor plat creating two lots being 2.34 acres of a called 7.33-acre tract of land 
located in the John W. Kerby Survey, Abstract Number 506, Tract 13, otherwise known as 950 
West Forest Grove Road, Lucas, Texas. 



Map data © OpenStreetMap contributors, Microsoft, Facebook, Inc. and its affiliates, Esri
Community Maps contributors, Map layer by Esri

Legend

Lucas Parcels

Date: 10/3/2023

0 0.04 0.090.02

mi

±

CASPIAN ESTATES: LOCATION MAP



















































Item No. 06 City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

May 2, 2024 

 

 
Requester: CIP Manager Patrick Hubbard 

 
Agenda Item Request 

Consider adopting Ordinance #2024-04-01000 Chapter 12 titled, Traffic and Vehicles, by amending 
article 12.05 titled, Stopping, Standing and Parking, and Section 12.05.001 titled, Prohibited in 
Specific Places, by designating Welborn Lane as a no parking area from the southern lot line of 
2500 Welborn Lane to the north end of Welborn Lane. 
 
Background Information 

 
The City of Lucas owns a trail easement that runs along the full length of Welborn Lane that 
connects from the East Winningkoff Trailhead to the Trinity Trail. People currently use this trail 
easement to access the Trinity Trail and US Army Corps of Engineers land along Lake Lavon. The 
city also has a funded project to construct a crushed granite trail at this location.  

 
This item comes as a request of residents on Welborn Lane, some of whom have reported that trail 
users often park along Welborn Lane to access the Trinity Trail. The city recently removed a gate 
that cut off a portion of the street to vehicular traffic. People have reportedly parked along the gravel 
road to access the trail rather than parking at the lot provided at the East Winningkoff Trailhead and 
walking to access the trail. There is concern about these trail users parking further up the roadway 
and across or in front of homes located along Welborn Lane, which is a narrow residential street. 
Therefore, staff presented an ordinance to designate Welborn Lane as a “No Parking” area to provide 
a deterrent to non-residents from parking along Welborn Lane when accessing the Trinity Trail and 
the East Winningkoff Trail.  

 
City Council directed staff to reach out to all residents along Welborn Lane and then held a follow-
up meeting where comments were received. A summary of statements of general support or 
opposition has been prepared in the form of a map. This shows support for the adoption of a “No 
Parking” sign north of the location of the previously existing gate and opposition to the 
establishment of a “No Parking” area south of the previously installed gate.  

 
All residents along the road were given notice and an opportunity to comment. The owners of all 
properties that can be accessed from Welborn Lane and that are located from 2500 Welborn Lane 
north to the Lucas City Limit gave explicit support for the proposal.  

 
At the time of writing, the owners of the flag lot located between 2500 Welborn Lane and 2550 
Welborn Lane did not provide comment on this proposal, however, this lot does not have driveway 
access to Welborn Lane and is instead accessed through an access easement along Ford Lane. The 
segment of this property that fronts to Welborn Lane is heavily wooded and contains a natural 
drainage channel that likely makes any possible future utilization of the lot frontage for road access 
infeasible. This property is unplated, has no house and is legally described as “Abstract A0028, 
Calvin Boles Survey, Sheet 6, Tract 229, 11.211 Acres.” 

 
At the time of writing, the city has received no comment from the owners of the property 
immediately south of 2500 Welborn Lane. This property is unplated, has no house and is legally  



Item No. 06 City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

May 2, 2024 

 

 
described as “Abstract A0028 Calvin Boles Survey, Sheet 6, Tract 221, 5.1 Acres.”  

 
There is currently one location in Lucas that is designated as “No Parking” areas. This is the North 
and South sides of Estates Parkway between Ingram Lane and Angel Parkway.  Parking is permitted 
on all other public roads in Lucas. 

 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation 

 
1. Summary of Public Comments (map)  
2. Ordinance Number 2024-04-01000 

 
Budget/Financial Impact 

 
The proposed ordinance imposes a fee of up to $200 for illegal parking at this location. This fee is 
intended to cover the costs of administering no parking citations but is not expected to generate 
significant revenue. 

 
Recommendations 
 
Based on past direction, field observation and an analysis of public comments received regarding 
this proposal, staff recommend designating all areas of Welborn Lane located north of the southern 
lot line of 2500 Welborn Lane as a “No Parking” area.  

 
Staff are generally in support of establishing “No Parking” along this segment of Welborn Lane 
insofar as this a request based on public feedback and that conforms with the intent of the “No 
Parking” ordinance. Under normal circumstances, staff do not offer support for “No Parking” in 
residential areas; however, the affected segment is subject to a novel circumstance that creates a 
specific nuisance.  

 
Motion 

I make a motion to adopt/not adopt Ordinance #2024-04-01000 Chapter 12 titled, Traffic and 
Vehicles, by amending article 12.05 titled, Stopping, Standing and Parking, and Section 12.05.001 
titled, Prohibited in Specific Places, by designating Welborn Lane as a no parking area from the 
southern lot line of 2500 Welborn Lane to the north end of Welborn Lane. 



W
elborn Ln

E Winningkoff Rd

Ford Ln

                Summary of Public Comments
              Welborn Lane No Parking Proposal

Note 1: Numbers shown are address numbers. The parcel at the far north of Welborn Lane is unplated and has no assigned address number.
Note 2: Those properties without numbers and shading submitted no comment as of 4/24/2024.
Note 3: The flag lot property between 2500 and 2550 Welborn Lane has no driveway access to Welborn Lane.

   Support
   Oppose



City of Lucas   
Ordinance 2024-04-01000 Amending “Stopping, Standing and Parking”, Article 12.05 1  
Approved: May 2, 2024 

 
 

ORDINANCE # 2024-04- 01000 
[AMENDING CODE OF ORDINANCES, ARTICLE 12.05 “STOPPING, 

STANDING AND PARKING”] 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING CHAPTER 12 TITLED “TRAFFIC 
AND VEHICLES” BY AMENDING ARTICLE 12.05 TITLED “STOPPING, 
STANDING AND PARKING”, BY AMENDING SECTION 12.05.001 TITLED 
“PROHIBITED IN SPECIFIC PLACES” BY DESIGNATING WELBORN 
LANE AS A NO PARKING AREA FROM THE SOUTHERN LOT LINE OF 
2500 WELBORN LANE TO THE NORTH END OF WELBORN LANE; 
PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY 
OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO HUNDRED DOLLARS 
($200.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, 

TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1. That the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lucas, Texas be, and the same 

is, hereby amended by amending Chapter 12 titled “Traffic and Vehicles” by amending section 
12.05 titled “Stopping, Standing and Parking” by amending Section 12.05.001 titled “Prohibited 
in Specific Places”, to read as follows: 

 
“CHAPTER 12 

TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES 
 
. . . 

 
ARTICLE 12.05  STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING 

 
§ 12.05.001 Prohibited in specific places. 
 
. . . 
 
AMEND (b), as follows: 
 
(b) On the hereinafter designated streets, or portions thereof, no person shall stop, stand, or 
park a motor vehicle. Such streets, or portions thereof, being more particularly described: 



City of Lucas   
Ordinance 2024-04-01000 Amending “Stopping, Standing and Parking”, Article 12.05 2  
Approved: May 2, 2024 

 
Road Extent Requirements 
Estates Parkway 
(FM 2170) 

From Angel Parkway (FM 2551) to Ingram Lane on 
the south side of Estates Parkway (FM 2170) 

No stopping, standing 
or parking 

Estates Parkway 
(FM 2170) 

From Ingram Lane to Angel Parkway (FM 2551) on 
the north side of Estates Parkway (FM 2170) 

No parking 

ADD:   
Welborn Lane From the Southern Lot Line of 2500 Welborn Lane 

to the north end of Welborn Lane 
No Parking 

 
. . .” 
 
 SECTION 2. All ordinances of the City of Lucas in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be, and same are hereby, repealed, provided, however, that all other provisions 
of said Ordinances are not in conflict herewith shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 3. Should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or 
section of this Ordinance or of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, be 
adjudged or held to be voided or unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of said Ordinances or the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended 
hereby, which shall remain in full force and effect. 
  
 SECTION 4. An offense committed before the effective date of the Ordinance is 
governed by prior law and the provisions of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances in effect when 
the offense was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose. 
 
 SECTION 5. Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of 
this Ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the City of Lucas Code of 
Ordinances, as amended, and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine not to exceed the sum 
of Two Hundred Dollars ($200) for each offense, and each and every day such violation shall 
continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
 SECTION 6. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 
and publication in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Lucas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS _________ DAY OF MAY, 2024. 
 



City of Lucas   
Ordinance 2024-04-01000 Amending “Stopping, Standing and Parking”, Article 12.05 3  
Approved: May 2, 2024 

       APPROVED: 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Jim Olk, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________________ 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney   Toshia Kimball, City Secretary 
(03-21-2024:4856-1258-7952, v. 1) 



Item No. 07 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

May 2, 2024 
 
 

 

 
Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider adopting Ordinance #2024-05-01002 amending the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, 
Chapter 12 Traffic and Vehicles, Article 12.03 Speed Limits, Section 12.03.002 Specific Speed 
Limits to reduce the speed limit on East Lucas Road (FM 3286) from 60 MPH to 55 MPH from 
Winningkoff Road to the Lucas city limits (at the bridge just east of Snider Lane).  
 
Background Information  
 
Staff received the completed speed study completed by TxDOT prepared for FM 3286 (East Lucas 
Road) on April 16, 2024. The study recommends a speed of 55 MPH from Winningkoff Road to 
the Lucas city limits. Our current code of ordinances specifies 60 MPH, staff recommends 
changing the speed to match the TxDOT speed study.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 

1. Ordinance #2024-05-01002 
2. Speed Study Collin County FM 3286 
3. East Lucas Road Specific Speed Limits Changes 

 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
  
Staff recommends adopting the proposed Ordinance #2024-05-01002.  
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny the adoption of Ordinance #2024-05-01002 amendments to code 
section 12.03.002 Specific Speed Limits to reduce the speed from 60 MPH to 55 MPH on a section 
of East Lucas Road (FM 3286) from Winningkoff to the Lucas city limits (the bridge just east of 
Snider Lane). The recommendation to reduce the speed is based on a TxDOT speed zone study on 
East Lucas Road (FM 3286) within the Lucas city limits. 
 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2024-05-01002 
Approved: May 2, 2024  - 1 - 
   

ORDINANCE # 2024-05-01002 
[AMENDING CODE OF ORDINANCE CHAPTER 12, ARTICLE 12.03] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING CHAPTER 12 “TRAFFIC AND 
VEHICLES” BY AMENDING ARTICLE 12.03 “SPEED LIMITS” BY 
AMENDING SECTION 12.03.002 “SPECIFIC SPEED LIMITS” TO 
AMEND THE MAXIMUM PRIMA FACIA SPEED LIMIT FOR FM 3286 
FOR ALL PORTIONS FROM WINNINGKOFF ROAD TO THE EASTERN 
CITY LIMITS AND LOCATED WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF 
THE CITY OF LUCAS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED 
THE SUM OF TWO HUNDRED DOLLARS ($200.00) FOR EACH 
OFFENSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, Section 545.356 of the Transportation Code provides that whenever the 
governing body of the City shall determine upon the basis of an engineering and traffic investigation 
that any prima facie speed therein set forth is greater or less than is reasonable or safe under the 
conditions found to exist at any intersection or other place or upon any part of a street or highway 
within the City, taking into consideration the width and condition of the pavement and other 
circumstances on such portion of said street or highway, as well as the usual traffic thereon, said 
governing body may determine and declare a reasonable and safe prima facie speed limit thereat or 
thereon by the passage of an ordinance, which shall be effective when appropriate signs giving notice 
thereof are erected at such intersection or other place or part of the street or highway; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas, upon the basis of an engineering 
and traffic investigation finds it necessary to alter prima facie maximum speed limits established by 
Section 545.356 of the Transportation Code, the following prima facie speed limits hereafter 
indicated for vehicles are hereby determined and declared to be reasonable and safe, and such speed 
limits are hereby fixed at the rate of speed indicated for vehicles traveling upon the named streets 
and highways, or parts thereof. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LUCAS, TEXAS: 

 
Section 1. That the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lucas, Texas be, and the same is, hereby 
amended by amending Chapter 12 “Traffic and Vehicles” by amending Article 12.03 “Speed 
Limits” by amending Section 12.03.002 “Specific speed limits” to read as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2024-05-01002 
Approved: May 2, 2024  - 2 - 
   

“CHAPTER 12 
 

TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES 
 

. . .  
ARTICLE 12.03 SPEED LIMITS 

 
. . .  
 
AMEND: 
 
Sec. 12.03.002  Specific speed limits 
 
. . .  
 
(c) On the hereinafter designated streets, or portions thereof, the speed designated herein shall 
be the prima facie maximum speed limit, and any speed in excess thereof shall be prima facie 
evidence that such speed is not reasonable or prudent and that it is unlawful. Such streets, or 
portions thereof, being more particularly described: 
 
Road Extent Speed Limit 

. . .  
  

FM 3286 All portions from Winningkoff Road (Station MP 10.527) 
to the eastern city limits, (Station MP 12.523), specifically 60 55 

. . . ”   
 
Section 2. All ordinances of the City of Lucas in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance 
shall be, and same are hereby, repealed, provided, however, that all other provisions of said 
Ordinances that are not in conflict herewith shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 3. Should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or section of this 
Ordinance or of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, be adjudged or held to 
be voided or unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of 
said Ordinances or the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, which shall remain 
in full force and effect. 
 
Section 4. An offense committed before the effective date of the Ordinance is governed by 
prior law and the provisions of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances in effect when the offense 
was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose. 
 
Section 5. Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of this 
Ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Code of Ordinances, as 
amended, and upon conviction in the municipal court shall be punished by a fine not to exceed the 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2024-05-01002 
Approved: May 2, 2024  - 3 - 
   

sum of Two Hundred Dollars ($200) for each offense, and each and every day such violation shall 
continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
Section 6. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Lucas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, 
COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS ________ DAY OF ______________ 2024. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Jim Olk, Mayor  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ __________________________________________ 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney  Toshia Kimball, City Secretary 
(cgm/4/22/24/4861-0401-8104, v. 1) 











City of Lucas, TX 

§ 12.03.002. Specific speed limits. 

(a) No person shall drive or operate a motor vehicle on any public street or highway within 
the territorial limits of the city at a greater rate of speed than 30 miles per hour unless 
posted otherwise as defined in subsection (c) of this section. 

(b) No person shall drive or operate a motor vehicle on any alley within the territorial limits 
of the city at a greater rate of speed than 15 miles per hour unless otherwise designated 
herein. 

(c) On the hereinafter designated streets, or portions thereof, the speed designated herein shall 
be the prima facie maximum speed limit, and any speed in excess thereof shall be prima 
facie evidence that such speed is not reasonable or prudent and that it is unlawful. Such 
streets, or portions thereof, being more particularly described: 

Road Extent Speed Limit 
West Lucas Road All portions west of FM 1378, 

specifically 
50 

Brockdale Park Road All portions within the city, 
generally 

40 

FM 1378 All portions within the city, 
generally 

50 

FM 3286 All portions from FM 1378 to 
Winningkoff Road, specifically 

45 

FM 3286 All portions from Winningkoff 
Road (Station MP 10.527) to the 
eastern city limits (Station MP 
12.523), specifically 

55 

FM 2170 From west city limits to all 
portions west of a point 2,440 
feet east of Rock Ridge Road to 
the western city limits, 
specifically east boundary of 
High School 

50 

FM 2170 All portions from FM 1378 to a 
point 2,440 feet east of Rock 
Ridge Road, specifically 

55 

Forest Grove Road All portions within the city, 
generally 

30 

Lewis Lane All portions within the city, 
generally 

40 

Downloaded from https://ecode360.com/LU6397 on 2024-04-22 

Commented [JH1]: Added stations to extent 

Commented [JH2]: Speed limit changed from 60 to 55 

https://ecode360.com/LU6397


City of Lucas, TX 

§ 12.03.002 § 12.03.002 

Road Extent Speed Limit 
Orr Lane All portions within the city, 

generally 
40 

FM 2514 All portions within the city, 
generally 

55 

Rock Ridge Road All portions within the city, 
generally 

35 

Stinson Road All portions within the city, 
generally 

40 

Winningkoff Road All portions within the city, 
generally 

35 

 

(d) A person commits an offense if that person operates or drives a vehicle in a school zone in 
the following designated areas or on the following designated streets at a speed greater 
than the speed designated by this section for that area or street or portion thereof, and any 
speed in excess of the limit provided in this section shall be prima facie evidence that the 
speed is not reasonable nor prudent and is unlawful. Based on recommendations of the 
traffic engineer, determined based on engineering and traffic surveys, the city council shall 
designate school zones with appropriate street markings, warnings or signs, which street 
markings, warnings or signs shall be placed at the school zones by the traffic engineer. 
The speed limit designated for school zones shall be effective only at times when 
appropriate flashing warnings and/or signs advising motorists of the speed limit are placed 
in conspicuous places. 

(e) In accordance with the recommendations of the city engineer, the following designated 
locations, measured from centerline of roadway to centerline of roadway, and areas are 
declared to be school zones and the maximum speed limit for all motor vehicles operated 
within such areas and locations and on such streets on school days, when either a flashing 
warning signal is in operation, or when appropriate signs are in place and conspicuous 
shall be as follows: 

(1) Hart Elementary School.  

(A) FM 1378, thirty-five (35) miles per hour, from a point one hundred (100) feet 
north of Estates Road to a point one hundred (100) feet south of Estelle Lane; 

(B) Estelle Lane, twenty (20) miles per hour, from a point two hundred (200) feet 
east of FM 1378 to a point one hundred (100) feet west of O’Hara Drive. 

(f) School days, as that term is used herein, shall be each Monday through Friday throughout 
the calendar year when the school nearest the school zone is in session, and for purposes 
of this article, shall include the time period between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
on such days. 

(g) It shall be unlawful for any person to drive or operate a motor vehicle through a school zone 
as designated and established herein during such periods of time, on school days, 

Downloaded from https://ecode360.com/LU6397 on 2024-04-22 

https://ecode360.com/LU6397


City of Lucas, TX 

§ 12.03.002 § 12.03.002 

when there is either a flashing warning signal in operation cautioning motorists to proceed 
with care; or, when appropriate signs are in place and conspicuous, in such a manner as to 
overtake and pass another vehicle being driven in the same direction upon the same street 
within said school zone. 

(h) It shall be unlawful for any person to drive or operate a vehicle on a public street or 
highway through the school zones herein designated during the periods herein designated 
at a rate of speed in excess of the prima facie maximum speed limits herein designated for 
such school zones. 

(i) Any person violating any provision of this section shall be deemed guilty of a 
misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof shall be fined in the sum of not more than two 
hundred dollars ($200.00) for each such violation. 

( Ordinance 2014-11-00801 adopted 11/6/14 ; Ordinance 2016-03-00831 adopted 3/3/16 ; 
Ordinance 2022-12-00961 adopted 12/1/2022 ) 

Downloaded from https://ecode360.com/LU6397 on 2024-04-22 

https://ecode360.com/LU6397


Item No. 08 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

May 2, 2024 
 
 

 

 
 
Requester: City Council  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Executive Session:  
 
A. The City Council will convene into executive session pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas 

Government Code, Personnel Matters, to deliberate the appointment, employment, duties of a 
public officer - City Manager. 

 
Background Information  
 
The meeting is closed to the public as authorized by Section 551.074 of the Texas Government 
Code. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation   
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
NA 



Item No. 09 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

May 2, 2024 
 
 

 

 
 
Requester: City Council  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Reconvene from Executive Session and take any action necessary as a result of the Executive 
Session. 
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation   
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
NA 


	00 - Agenda
	01 - Citizen Input CS
	02 - Community Interest CS
	02a - Keep Lucas Beautiful certificate
	03 - Consent Agenda CS
	03a - 04-18-2024 City Council Meeting Minutes
	04 - Updated Fee Schedule CS
	04a - Updated  Ordinance Amending Fee Schedule -  Administrative Remedies for Violations
	05 - Caspian Estates Minor Plat CS
	05a - Caspian Estates Location Map
	05b - Caspian Estates minor plat
	05c - Caspian Estates Minor Plat Application and Checklist
	06 - Welborn Lane No Parking Sign 5.2 (2)
	06a - Welborn No Parking Exhibit (flat)
	06b Ordinance 2024-04-01000
	07 - East Lucas Road Speed limit change CS
	07a - East Lucas Road Ordinance Amending Speed Limit on FM3286 (Article 12.03) to 55 MPH
	07b - East Lucas Road Speed Study (strip Map)
	07c - East Lucas Road Specific speed limits Changes
	08 - Executive Session CS
	09 - Reconvene CS



